Van Buren/Cass District Health Department Minutes
10/08/2025

Chairperson Leary called the meeting to order at 3:02pm at the Van Buren ISD Conference Center at 490
S Paw Paw St. Lawrence, MI in the Loring Room on Wednesday, October 8, 2025. Roll call taken.

Board members present: Jeremiah Jones, Tina Leary, Robert Linderman, Randall Peat, Roseann Marchetti

Board members absent: Priscilla Gatties

Employees present: Nancy Desai, Lauren Jaramillo, Danielle Persky in-person and Kelly Adkins, Alisha
Bartlett, Dr. Larry Wile, Holly Young, Jennifer Zordan virtually

Others: Jerry Marchetti in-person and Roger Boyer, Karen Tan virtually

September meeting minutes were reviewed. Motioned by Peat and second by Jones to approve the
meeting minutes as written. All voting yes, motion carried.

Finance Director’s Report

Desai started by reviewing two months of disbursements for August and September. Noted item includes
the prepayment of Patagonia annual subscription for electronic medical records. Linderman asked about
line 20 to Paw Paw Collision. Desai noted it was the fees due after the administrative vehicle was
damaged by a deer. Linderman asked if raising fees has been looked at. Persky is reviewing
Environmental Health fees for the next month. Other local health department fees are being used as
references. The disinterment and reinterment permitting process is discussed. Linderman asked about the
budget item for the building space. Desai responded that it was noted twice and has been corrected.

Discussed and reviewed. Motioned by Peat, second by Jones to accept the August and September
expenditures reports. All voting yes, motion carried.

Expenditures Report

Desai goes on to discuss the state audit of the unattributed COVID-19 immunization funds from 2021.
The state auditors requested a corrective action plan along with the payment of $80,000. Peat asked if the
health department agrees with the findings. Desai stated yes, which was the intention of the audit ad hoc
committee from last year and previous discussions going back to earlier this year. Leary asked where the
payment would come from. Desai stated it will be paid through fund balance, but a payment plan is being
requested. Desai provided the State a corrective action plan to revise the chart of accounts so that it can
better identify expenses to proper grants. Desai implemented a revised chart of accounts beginning fiscal

year 2023-2024.

Linderman asked how the state knows how reporting occurs. EGrAMS is the state grant management
system. Persky noted that a shortcoming of this system is that quarterly reporting can be done without
bank reconciliation. From there, it looks like all money was expended, but the audit did not show this due
to a lack of cost coding. Linderman noted the data is interesting with a total of $106,000 misallocated, but
credit was given by the state to pay less. Persky added that the cost benefit has not been analyzed, but the
state did note litigation against the previous auditors whose role was to catch incidences such as these is
an option. Marchetti asked who our previous auditors were. Persky agreed to update board members as

more details become available.



Van Buren/Cass District Health Department Minutes
10/08/2025

Administrator/Health Officer’s Report

Persky began with a state budget update. Hearing and vision along with the Kindergarten Oral Health
Assessment (KOHA) came out unscathed. A major update is for dental. Originally removed from the
budget, adult Medicaid for dental treatment was reinstated in the final budget. In addition, there is a new
one-time funding line item called the dental safety net payments. An effort to have this line item created
was done in collaboration with other similarly modeled dental clinics that provide Medicaid dental care
without being federally qualified health centers (FQHCs). This group got together as all are sutfering due
to the 2023 removal of the state plan amendment in favor of increased Medicaid reimbursement rates,

which is not enough to recoup costs.

This coalition came together with lobbyists from the law firm KJL. A health department can’t lobby but
registering as a coalition does provide this resource. $4 million were secured through the dental safety net
payments line item. Because it’s a one-time budget item, it does not dictate how it will be paid out. A
meeting will be held with lawmakers and MDHHS to determine the best way to receive these funds. The
question remains about what that will look like, but funding may become available as early as February.
The next steps are to make this a permanent funding item through the executive budget through continued
lobbying and advocacy as a coalition. Linderman asked how many adult patients there are. Persky
responded that 47 percent are 50 and older with only 15 percent being youth. Linderman asked about the
attorney and lobbyist fees. Persky responded that the health department’s fees are 250 dollars a month.
The cost is based on the size of the clinics. Linderman agreed it was well worth the effort. Linderman also

noted appreciation for the updated board packet page numbering.

Persky moved to discuss a proposal for a pilot to strengthen workplace culture, improve employee
satisfaction through burn out, and enhance productivity. Jones notes that it can be difficult to schedule
time off, and Persky agreed. The proposal requests a review for future approval of a reduced hour work
week pilot. The request also asks for recommendations on how to best split the hours between five or four
days, the impact on our clients, measuring impact, and more. With this being a pilot program, ideally it
would run 12 months as all divisions have different busy seasons. Studies were discussed showing that
there is no productivity loss associated with this type of schedule change and improved employee
satisfaction that sustains the workforce. Persky discussed which day might be best and proposed Fridays
as phone and foot traffic is often low this day. The board reviewed other day’s recommendations.
Linderman asked what holidays the health department closes for. Persky noted it would work in the health
department’s favor, but Linderman asked for this to be confirmed. Linderman asked what this would look
like for Environmental Health. Schedules are currently slowing down, but that is why the 12-month pilot
is important to look at how this would affect this team during that time. Leadership meetings are held
weekly to review future challenges that arise such as putting in the policy that staff may be asked to work
40 hours during busy periods. Overtime is not paid until staff work over 40 hours.

Jones asked if there are other similar organizations with this schedule that can be compared to. Persky
agreed to bring more information to the next meeting. Initial findings show it is often private businesses
that have this schedule rather than those in government sectors. Marchetti requested more information on
the burnout being seen as that is concerning. Jones noted that he has seen similar staff burn out within law
enforcement. Persky elaborated on the burn out with overwork, supply/demand, and dealing with
challenging public matters. The budget concerns of this past year have produced fears of job loss or other

2



Van Buren/Cass District Health Department Minutes
10/08/2025

cuts, too. There is much outside the scope of control. This is one thing that can be done while also
committing to the value of health department staff. Linderman confirmed 13 holidays, which would mean
several three-day work weeks. Holidays that land on specific days versus changing dates are reviewed.
Persky reiterated the importance of expectations, which would mean staff are in-person during the
specific hours noted. This is important to keep items moving quickly and eliminate communication
barriers with different schedules. Remote work has its place, but it would need to be approved ahead of
time. Marchetti asked if there are any cost savings with this move. Desai stated the PTO accrual would be
reduced. Persky added that building use like electricity would also be lowered. Leary asked about wages,
specifically for hourly employees. Persky responded that this has been reviewed with leadership, but the
details are still being fleshed out. There would need to be hourly rate adjustments. The intention is to

benefit the team, not devalue with lower wages.

Peat commented on his experience in the private sector and examples such as summer hours. Another
option is not reducing business hours and having each department decide what they would cover. Peat
continued by noting his support as it is allowed for employee retention in his experience. Desai agreed
with the sentiment of a recruitment tool to find qualified candidates. Peat also added the benefit of the
flexibility of this schedule. Persky reviewed the importance of accountability with this rollout. Linderman
asked about the holiday and weather closing pattern. Desai responded that we are not closing unless Van
Buren and Cass Counties approve of an unexpected closure. Peat added that it’s important to remember
that the health department is a service to the community and favors crafting the schedule around
departments for accessibility. Linderman commented on the phone tree as a barrier to communication at
the moment. Persky agreed with it being difficult and reception has been pulled to help clinical at times.
Along with the phone tree being updated, the entire phone system will need to be replaced in the future.
Linderman asked for updates on the phone system, which Persky agreed to provide with IT,

Persky moved to discuss a performance management project as an element of public health. Metrics
around the work being done are necessary to quantify impact and provide evaluation. A mini grant was
received to improve this. VMSG, a public health performance management system, is being implemented
with training for ten staff. Although it is not required currently for Michigan accreditation, it is being

reviewed as a possibility for the future.

Nursing and Medical Director Report

Dr. Wile reminded everyone to continue to wear mosquito bug spray and asked for any questions from the
board. Linderman asked how long a COVID-19 shot lasts for. Dr. Wile stated it depends on variables
such as immune systems or how infectious a person is. It might not give you protection from getting it,
but it will give you protection from getting hospitalized, serious infections, or death.

Persky noted a request from Nursing Director Beeching to point out the monthly board report’s rabies
data. The health department reported that 15 individuals within the district received post exposure
prophylactic (PEP) for rabies following a potential exposure. In each case, the bat was unavailable or not

suitable for testing.

Dental Report

Persky moved to discuss updates on proposed dental program options in consideration of the significant
deficit. Ad hoc committee members met in September. During this meeting, public health law, current



Van Buren/Cass District Health Department Minutes
10/08/2025

and proposed budgets, dental fees, current staffing, and the landscape of dental providers in the area.
After this review, three options were discussed. The most viable option is to sell to Cass Family Clinics as
they showed interest in buying. On the following Friday, the leadership team met with Cass Family
Clinics and Gatties to review interest and answer preliminary questions. Staff were then told of this
option, and the discussion was brought to Cass Family Clinics board. From this meeting came further
questions on length of the lease, a reconsideration of the purchase price, and an understanding that both
clinics would spend 30 days doing due diligence. At the start of October, Cass Family Clinic dental
leadership team toured the health department dental clinic. The focus is now to work collaboratively with
the Northern Health Foundation, who is the non-profit on our behalf that works with the bank on the
Dowagiac mortgage. The lease indicates subleasing, but there are certain requirements that include being
vetted by PNC. Persky is also working with the City of Dowagiac to coordinate leasing options.

To balance costs in Van Buren County, two operatories would need to be built out. Architects were
brought in with costs and proposals for how to add these to the second level in Lawrence. The purchase
price was set in the letter of intent as $425,000, but the request is to be closer to $400,000, which is
feasible. The sticking point is the lease. Peat asked if any staff will be left on the second level. Persky
responded that Environmental Health staff and Nursing staff will still be in the building. They would be
moved to the first level. The health department would then be in a traditional tenant lease on the first
level. Peat asked if Cass Family Clinics considers the health department as competition and if that is the
motivation. Persky responded that Cass Family Clinics is modelled as a FQHC, so services are all under
one roof from a holistic health approach. The clinic already had started exploring adding dental to their
recently built Dowagiac pharmacy and primary care facility, so this would be a turnkey solution. Peat
asked for an update on if the Dowagiac facility is running a deficit. Persky responded that it was not just
one clinic issue. No matter what changes were made, a revenue ceiling of $2.5 million became apparent.
One clinic without the need to pay for the dedicated fiber optic line that runs $3,000 a month. Subsidies
are available but are not always guaranteed. The focus being moved to Van Buren County with additional
operatories would increase production without the added costs of having two facilities.

Peat commented that from the buyer’s perspective, there are no startup costs. Desai noted that the
concession is the lease, which Peat and Persky agreed with. Persky added that a year ago Cass Family
Clinics looked at moving into the Dowagiac first level, which the health department welcomed. Peat
asked what dental services would look like for veterans in Cass County. Desai responded that their grant
is much smaller comparatively. Reimbursement was $1,900 in Cass County compared to $54,000 in Van
Buren County. Peat asked what the hold is up if this is mutually beneficial. Persky responded that it is the
lease. The goal is to have updates on the lease within the next month.

Environmental Health Report
Updates are discussed in the written report.
Health Promotions Report

Updates are discussed in the written report.

For public comment, Boyer commented on the proposed reduced hour work week. His concern is in his
experience, working ten hours a day, four days a week did not improve his efficiency as part of his own
study. Concern was also given about the pay increase that comes with reducing hours without reducing



Van Buren/Cass District Health Department Minutes
10/08/2025

salaries. Boyer asked who would approve this proposal. Persky responded that the Board of Health would
approve.
Linderman asked if a recognition event will take place for Don Hanson’s term on the Board of Health.

Persky responded yes, she has been working to contact the Hansons to attend a board meeting. Leary
noted she will see the Hansons soon. Linderman noted he will not be present for next month’s meeting.

Peat updated on the schedule for the Holtec Palisades nuclear power plant reopening. Everything at this
time is on schedule. There are 2,000 contractors and 600 full-time employees. They have been a great
partner to Van Buren County. Linderman asked where they would be living. Peat noted this will be an
issue, but it is being addressed. Jones added that nuclear waste was requested to be placed in Cass

County, but that was not desired.

There were no other business and no public comment.

Motion to adjourn at 4:25pm by Peat, second by Jones. The next regular District Board of Health meeting
is scheduled for Wednesday, November 12, 2025, at 3:00pm at the Van Buren/Cass District Health
Department at 302 So Front Street, Dowagiac MI in the Community Center.

Tina Leary, BJ@rd of @alth Chairperson

Danielle Persky, Health Officer

Lauren Jaramillo, Bﬁd of Health Secretary



